
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 


THE 20TH DAY OF APRIL, 2015 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District Number 38, Cook 
County, Illinois will hold a Regular Meeting on the 20th day of April, 2015 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., for the 
Closed Session meeting in Room 252 and at 7:30 o’clock p.m. for the Open Session in the Library 
Technology Center of The Joseph Sears School, 542 Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois. 
 


AGENDA 
 


Room 252 (Closed Session – 6:00 p.m.) 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 


Present     Absent    Present    Absent 
Timothy Kollar ______      ______ Stacey M. Van Metre ______      ______ 
Christine L. Stoll                  ______ Scott Wallace  ______      ______ 
Betsy Moerschel ______      ______ Gregory F. Werd ______      ______ 
Suzanne S. Nelson ______      ______ 
 


II. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC EMPLOYEE 
MATTERS, COLLECTIVE BARGAINING, PENDING OR PROBABLE LITIGATION, 
SECURITY PROCEDURES, AND PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR USE OF 
THE PUBLIC BODY (Tab Closed Session)  


 
Library Technology Center (Open Session – 7:30 p.m.) 


 
III. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 


Present     Absent    Present    Absent 
Timothy Kollar ______      ______ Stacey M. Van Metre ______      ______ 
Christine L. Stoll                  ______ Scott Wallace  ______      ______ 
Betsy Moerschel ______      ______ Gregory F. Werd ______      ______ 
Suzanne S. Nelson ______      ______ 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment) 


 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS (Tab A) 
 


A. Freedom of Information Act Requests – There was 1 request as follows: Information regarding 
collective bargaining agreements with custodians, contracts for out sourced services as well as 
a list of custodians and their compensation. 


B. Report from the Superintendent 
 Review of Projected Enrollment for 2015-2016 School Year and Historical Enrollment 


C. Report from the Business Services and Human Resources Manager 
 Review of Historical Operational Per Pupil Expenses 


D. Report from the Principal 
E. Report from the Director of Student Services  


 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 



http://www.kenilworth38.org/cms/lib02/IL01001203/Centricity/Domain/234/2_230_-_School_Board_-_Public_Participation_at_School_Board_Mtgs_and_Petitions_Revised_10-15-12.pdf





A. Approval of Minutes of the March 16, 2015, Regular Meeting and Closed Session and April 7, 
2015, Special Meeting and Closed Session (Tab Minutes)  


B. Approval of Investment Reports for March 2015 (Tab Financial) 
C. Approval of Accounts Payable for March 17, 2015 to April 20, 2015 (Tab Financial) 
D. Authorization to Destroy Closed Session Recording for October 2013 
E. Approval of Family Medical Leave Request (Tab Closed Session) 
F. Approval of Board Policy Revisions: 4:170 Safety and 6:50 School Wellness (Tab B) 
G. Approval of 2014-2015 School Year Final Calendar for Last Day of School (Tab C) 


 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 


 
A.  Presentation and Potential Action to Authorize Distribution of Annual Parent and 


Faculty/Staff Surveys (Tab D) 
B. Discussion of and Potential Action to Approve Board Policy Revision 4:30 Revenue and 


Investments (Tab E) 
 


VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Approval of Kenilworth Education Association Memorandum of Understanding for 


Additional Daily Teaching (Tab Closed Session) 
B. Approval of Settlement Agreement with Professional Construction Management, Inc. 


Regarding Roof Litigation (Tab Closed Session) 
C. Presentation and Discussion of Board Policy: 7:280 Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease 


(Tab F) 
D. Setting of Reorganization Meeting Date and Board Reflection of Roles and Responsibilities  
E. Discussion of Strategic Plan Progress and Process for Development of Year 3 


 
IX. OTHER BUSINESS 


 
X. PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment) 


 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 


 
Dated the 17th day of April, 2015. 


   


 
        Kelley M. Kalinich, Ed.D. 
        Secretary, Board of Education 
        Kenilworth School District No. 38 



http://www.kenilworth38.org/cms/lib02/IL01001203/Centricity/Domain/234/2_230_-_School_Board_-_Public_Participation_at_School_Board_Mtgs_and_Petitions_Revised_10-15-12.pdf






 


DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


	
  
	
   	
   	
   	
  
To: Dr. Kelley Kalinich, Superintendent 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Business Services and Human Resources Manager 
 
Date: April 20, 2015 
 
Re: Business Office and Human Resources Update 
 
Accounts Payable Review 
 
The following section will highlight any bills that are beyond the regular monthly bills list or 
require an explanation: 
 
Explanation: Special Education Technology Purchase 


 
 
Explanation: Literacy Curriculum for December 2014-March 2015 


 
 
 
Explanation: Speaker Replacement for the Auditorium and Multipurpose Room  


 
 
 
Explanation: Technology Consultant for the New Phone System Installation  


 
 


 
Accounts Payables – April 2015 
 
Please note, check numbers 132161 – 132254 were voided checks.  The paper checks were 
inserted incorrectly into the printer. These checks have been documented and shredded. 
 
Operational Spending per Pupil 
 
This memo is a follow up to the review of the 2014 School Report Card – Operational Spending 
Per Pupil amount with and without construction costs.  Below is a snapshot of the Operational 
Spending Per Pupil chart from the 2014 School Report Card, followed by an analysis that 
presents the Operational Spending per Pupil without construction costs. 







 


DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       
MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     
542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


	
  
 
 
 
As a reminder, the financial data used for the school report card is always two years behind.  For 
example, the 2014 School Report card is based on financial data from the 2013 Annual Financial 
Report. In order to address this issue, an additional analysis presents the Operational Spending 
per Pupil using enrollment and financial data from the same year. 
	
  


	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  


Operational	
  Spending	
  per	
  Pupil	
  –	
  School	
  Report	
  Card	
  Data	
  
School&Report&Card&Year& 2012& 2013& 2014&
Operating&Expense&Per&Pupil&School&Report&Card&(with&Construction)& 16,769& 18,857& 22,150&
Fall&Enrollment& 570& 559& 522&
District&Total& 9,558,330& 10,541,063& 11,562,300&
District&K&Construction&& 206,659& 545,235& 1,109,342&
District&K&General&Operations& 9,351,671& 9,995,828& 10,452,958&
Operating&Expense&Per&Pupil&without&Construction&Costs& $16,406& $17,882& $20,025&
& 	
  
*Construction	
  Costs	
  are	
  from	
  the	
  Annual	
  Financial	
  Report	
  
*School	
  Report	
  Card	
  Enrollment	
  figures	
  include	
  Kindergarten	
  through	
  Eighth	
  Grade	
  
	
  


Operational	
  Spending	
  per	
  Pupil	
  –	
  Actual	
  Data	
  
	
  


Fiscal'Year' 2009' 2010' 2011' 2012' 2013'
Operating*Expense*Per*Pupil*(with*Construction)* 16,306* 16,144* 17,635* 18,461* 20,573*
Fall*Enrollment* 582* 566* 542* 571* 562*
District*Total* 9,489,876* 9,137,568* 9,558,330* 10,541,063* 11,562,300*
District*G*Construction** 262,500' 267,100' 253,100' 206,659' 545,235'
District*G*General*Operations* 9,227,376* 8,870,468* 9,305,230* 10,334,404* 11,017,065*
Operating*Expense*Per*Pupil*without*Construction*Costs* $15,855* $15,672* $17,168* $18,099* $19,603*
' 	
  
*Construction	
  Costs	
  are	
  from	
  the	
  Annual	
  Financial	
  Report	
  
*Enrollment	
  figures	
  include	
  Junior	
  Kindergarten	
  through	
  Eighth	
  Grade	
  
	
  
Finally, using data from the School Report Card, the following analysis compares the 
Operational Spending per Pupil within New Trier Township. In order to compare apples to 
apples, the Operational Spending per Pupil does not exclude construction costs. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 








 


DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       


MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     


542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


To:   Dr. Kelley M. Kalinich, Superintendent 


From:  Ms. Julia Jones, Director of Student Services  
Date:   April 16, 2015 
RE:   Director of Student Services Report for the April 20, 2015 Kenilworth School District 


No. 38 Board of Education Meeting 
 
Erin’s Law 
As a result of the recently passed Erin's Law (http://erinslaw.org/), all Illinois schools are  
required to implement a program addressing sexual abuse prevention.  The law takes it  
name after Illinois-native Erin Merryn who was the victim of sexual abuse as a child.  To  
address the requirements of Erin's Law, speaker Victor Pacini will visit The Joseph Sears  
School to make grade level presentations to students.  Victor’s program teaches students  
about keeping their bodies safe using age-appropriate music and discussion.   


Victor will speak to students on April 28 and April 29. He will also be available to present to 
parents during two sessions: the first at 2 p.m. on April 21 in the Multipurpose Room and 
the second at 6:30 p.m. on April 21 in the Library Technology Center.   


To learn more about Victor Pacini, go to: 
www.VictorPacini.com  
www.VictimtoVictor.org 
 
NSSED 
FY16 Budget Draft II – See attachment 
Total revenues for FY 16 is $47.3 million of which $11.8 million are non-operating expenses 
(flow through). The total operating budget for NSSED is $35.5 million. $31 million of the 
total expenditure are salaries and benefits.  
 
North Shore Academy (NSA) and North Shore Academy Elementary (NSAE) tuition are set at 
$52,776 for members and $60,694 for non-members as a result of the alternative billing 
structure changes and CPI increase. The overall NSA/NSAE budget is showing a deficit of 
$16,000.  
 
The Education and Life Skills (ELS) tuition is set at $36,009. The FY16 budget is based on an 
increase of 20 ADE from FY15. Currently, draft II shows a $3,000 deficit for ELS. 
 
The tuition for Early Childhood is set at $47,711 for full-day students and $23,856 for half-
day students. The FY16 ADE is decreased from last year, as Northbrook District 28 will 
support their own EC classroom. The EC budget currently is at a $1,166 deficit. 
 
Strategic Plan Updates – Response to Intervention (RtI) 
*RtI is also known as Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 
 
 
2014-15 Data Changes:  



http://erinslaw.org/

http://www.victorpacini.com/

http://app.getresponse.com/click.html?x=a62b&lc=r6fR7&mc=IM&s=t0arj7&u=SEd4&y=1&





 


DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       


MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     


542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 Replaced Iowa Assessments (fall) with Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) testing 
(fall, winter, spring benchmarks) 


 Continued with AIMSweb Benchmark Assessments (fall, winter, and will determine 
the need to administer in the spring) 


 Cognitive Abilities Test (CogAT) – previously administered in the fall for 3rd, 4th, 5th, 
and 7th grades. The test will now be administered in the spring for 2nd and 5th grade 
(along with 3rd grade this year to avoid a data gap.) 


RtI Philosophy Statement: 
 The statement has been reviewed and will be revised in conjunction with the roll out 


of the new schedule based upon changes with junior high support. 
Gifted Education: 


 This has primarily been a year of research, along with incorporating new data 
sources into identification and revising the philosophy. 


Ongoing Items: 
 Once the schedule is finalized, new RtI printed material will be distributed to the 


community. 
 Two forums will be held in the beginning of the year. The first will be more 


informational related to data and the enrichment period. The second will feature 
more student products and teacher examples related to differentiation.  


 








H:\2014-15\Enrollment Report          
          
  04-20-15       


 
 


ENROLLMENT PROJECTION REPORT 2015-2016 
April 20, 2015 


  


 Historical Comparison 


 
 


Grade 


Beginning 
2013-2014 


School Year 
(08-28-13) 


Beginning 
2014-2015 


School Year 
(08-18-14) 


Current 
Enrollment 
Apriln20, 


2015 
(2014-2015) 


Projected 
Enrollment  for 


2015-2016 


Fall 2015 
Census 


Numbers 
 


Kasarda 
December 2014 


Projections 
2015-2016 


 


JK 7 12 13 8 21 NA 


K 43 43 44 21 24 41/46/50 


1 50 46 45 (46)* 44 27 43/45/47 


2 49 51 51 46 39 45/47/49 


3 66 50 52 53 45 48/50/52 


4 47 67 65 (66)* 52 43 47/49/51 


5 67 42 42 67  62 63/65/67 


6 60  67 68 42 52 40/42/44 


7 75 56 56 69 56 66/68/70 


8 51 74* 71 (73)* 57 69 55/55/57 


Total 518 508 507 (511)* 459  438 448/467/487 


 


 
            PROJECTED 2015-2016 ENROLLMENT SUMMARY WITH CLASS SECTIONS 


 


School JK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Total 


The Joseph Sears School 8 


 


  21  


 


44 46 53 52 67 42  69 57 459 


No. of Current Sections 


No. Advisory Sections 


1 2 3 3 3 3 4 


4 6 5 


19 


15 


 
 
 


* Includes alternate student placement 
 








DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       


MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     


542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 


 


 


 


 
    


 
Memo to: Board of Education 
 
From:  Dr. Crystal S. LeRoy, Business Services/Human Resources Manager and   
  FOIA Officer  
 
Date:  April 20, 2015 
 
Re:  Freedom of Information Act Requests 


 
The following Freedom of Information Act Request has been received and responded to since the 
last Regular Board of Education meeting: 
 
From Mr. Nick Carone on March 12, 2015 
 
The request was for the following on behalf of Mr. Nick Carone: 
 


1) List of all Custodial/Maintenance Employees, including name, hire date and salary. 
2) Percentage of wage increases that the above mentioned for 2013, 2014 and 2015 (and if possible, 


2016 & 2017) 
3) Collective Bargaining Agreement for Custodial/Maintenance, if any. 
4) Contract for outsourced custodial/maintenance personnel, if any. 


 
The response was provided on March 12, 2015. There were no legal fees incurred. It required 
time on the part of Ms. Angela Lascola and myself to research all appropriate documents 
requested.   
 
 
 
 


 


 








Class


K-8 


Enrollment


JK-8 


Enrollmen


JK 


Enrollment


JK-8 


Enrollment


1952 548 548


1953 535 535


1954 540 540


1955 558 558


1956 551 551


1957 584 584


1958 603 603


1959 635 635


1960 651 651


1961 630 653 23


1962 571 619 48


1963 627 674 47


1964 677 677


1965 664 664


1966 654 654


1967 591 638 47


1968 585 634 49


1969 595 646 51


1970 613 657 44


1971 606 628 22


1972 584 624 40


1973 620 660 40


1974 592


1975 610


1976 594 621 27


1977 583


1978 564 575 11


1979 543 566 23


1980 546 562 16


1981 537 554 17


1982 491 512 21


1983 444 460 16


1984 415 433 18


1985 371 390 19


1986 372 395 23


1987 373 393 20


1988 366 398 32


1989 371 397 26


1990 369 402 33


1991 380 412 32


1992 420 450 30


1993 451 481 30


1994 470 492 22


1995 485 528 43


1996 502 536 34


1997 498 519 21


1998 531 583 52


1999 531 570 39


2000 530 577 47


2001 519 571 52


2002 529 564 35


2003 539 559 20


2004 542 585 43


2005 564 584 20


2006 555 584 29


2007 566 586 20


2008 559 573 14


2009 549 563 14


2010 531 542 11


2011 555 571 16


2012 546 562 16


2013 520 513 7


2014 484 507 12


The Joseph Sears School Enrollment Data


1952 - 2013


350


375


400


425


450


475


500


525


550


575


600


625


650


675


700


1
9
5
2


1
9
5
3


1
9
5
4


1
9
5
5


1
9
5
6


1
9
5
7


1
9
5
8


1
9
5
9


1
9
6
0


1
9
6
1


1
9
6
2


1
9
6
3


1
9
6
4


1
9
6
5


1
9
6
6


1
9
6
7


1
9
6
8


1
9
6
9


1
9
7
0


1
9
7
1


1
9
7
2


1
9
7
3


1
9
7
4


1
9
7
5


1
9
7
6


1
9
7
7


1
9
7
8


1
9
7
9


1
9
8
0


1
9
8
1


1
9
8
2


1
9
8
3


1
9
8
4


1
9
8
5


1
9
8
6


1
9
8
7


1
9
8
8


1
9
8
9


1
9
9
0


1
9
9
1


1
9
9
2


1
9
9
3


1
9
9
4


1
9
9
5


1
9
9
6


1
9
9
7


1
9
9
8


1
9
9
9


2
0
0
0


2
0
0
1


2
0
0
2


2
0
0
3


2
0
0
4


2
0
0
5


2
0
0
6


2
0
0
7


2
0
0
8


2
0
0
9


2
0
1
0


2
0
1
1


2
0
1
2


2
0
1
3


2
0
1
4


JK-8 Enrollment 
1952-2014 


350


375


400


425


450


475


500


525


550


575


600


625


650


675


700


1
9
5
2


1
9
5
3


1
9
5
4


1
9
5
5


1
9
5
6


1
9
5
7


1
9
5
8


1
9


5
9


1
9
6
0


1
9
6
1


1
9
6
2


1
9
6
3


1
9
6
4


1
9
6
5


1
9
6
6


1
9
6
7


1
9


6
8


1
9
6
9


1
9
7
0


1
9
7
1


1
9
7
2


1
9
7
3


1
9
7
4


1
9
7
5


1
9
7
6


1
9
7
7


1
9
7
8


1
9
7
9


1
9
8
0


1
9


8
1


1
9
8
2


1
9
8
3


1
9
8
4


1
9
8
5


1
9
8
6


1
9
8
7


1
9
8
8


1
9
8
9


1
9
9
0


1
9
9
1


1
9
9
2


1
9
9
3


1
9


9
4


1
9
9
5


1
9
9
6


1
9
9
7


1
9
9
8


1
9
9
9


2
0
0
0


2
0
0
1


2
0
0
2


2
0
0
3


2
0
0
4


2
0
0
5


2
0
0
6


2
0
0
7


2
0
0
8


2
0
0
9


2
0
1
0


2
0
1
1


2
0
1
2


2
0
1
3


2
0
1
4


Sears School Enrollment 1952 - 2014 


JK-8 Enrollment K-8 Enrollment JK Enrollment


. 


O:\jcampanaro\campanaroj\Enrollment\2015-2016 Enrollment\Edited Copy of Enrollment--historical data 1952-2014 Chart updated.xls 4/16/2015













 


 


4:170 Page 1 of 2 


 Adopted 09-27-10 


 Revised 05-06-13 


 Revised 04-20-15 


 


Kenilworth School District No. 38  4:170 


 


Operational Services 


Safety  


Safety and Security 


All District operations, including the education program, shall be conducted in a manner that 


will promote the safety and security of everyone on District property or at a District event. 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop, implement, and maintain a comprehensive safety and 


security plan that includes, without limitation:  


 


1. An emergency operations plan(s) addressing prevention, preparation, response, and recovery 


for each school; 3  


 


2. Provisions for a coordinated effort with local law enforcement and fire officials, emergency 


medical services personnel, and the Board Attorney;  


 


3. A school safety drill plan;  


 


4. Instruction in safe bus riding practices; 4 and  


 


5. A clear, rapid, factual, and coordinated system of internal and external communication.  


  


In the event of an emergency that threatens the safety of any person or property, students, faculty and 


staff are encouraged to follow the best practices discussed for their building regarding the use of any 


available cellular telephones.  


 


School Safety Drill Plan  
  


During every academic year, each school building that houses school children shall conduct, at a 


minimum, each of the following in accordance with the School Safety Drill Act, 105 ILCS 128/:  


 


1. Three school evacuation drills  


 


2. One bus evacuation drill  


 


3. One severe weather and shelter-in-place drill  


 


4. One law enforcement drill  


 


Automated External Defibrillator (AED)  
 


The Superintendent or designee shall implement a written plan for responding to medical emergencies 


at the District’s physical fitness facilities in accordance with the Fitness Facility Medical Emergency 


Preparedness Act. The plan shall provide for an automated external defibrillator (AED) to be 







 


 


4:170 Page 2 of 2 


 Adopted 09-27-10 


 Revised 05-06-13 


 Revised 04-20-15 


 


available according to State law requirements. This policy does not create an obligation to use an 


AED nor is it intended to create any expectation that an AED will be present or a trained person will 


be present and/or able to use an AED.  


 


Soccer Goal Safety 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall implement the Movable Soccer Goal Safety Act in accordance 


with the guidance published by the Illinois Department of Public Health. Implementation of the Act 


shall be directed toward improving the safety of moveable soccer goals by requiring that they be 


properly anchored. 


 


Unsafe School Choice Option  


 


The unsafe school choice option provided in state law allows students to transfer to another District 


school or to a public charter school within the District.  


The transfer option is not available in this District because each grade is offered only in one 


attendance center and there are no public charter schools in the District. A student who would 


otherwise have qualified for the choice option may request special accommodations from the 


Superintendent or designee. 


 


Emergency Closing 


 


The Superintendent is authorized to close the school in the event of hazardous weather or other 


emergency that threatens the safety of students, faculty, staff members, or school property.  


 


Annual Review 


 


The School Board or its designee will annually review each school building’s safety and security 


plans, protocols, and procedures, as well as each building’s compliance with the school safety drill 


plan. 


 


LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.2, 5/18-12.5, and 128/. 


210 ILCS 74/. Physical Fitness Facility Medical Emergency Preparedness Act. 


CROSS REF.: 4:110 (Transportation), 4:175 (Convicted Child Sex Offender; Criminal 


Background Check and/or Screen; Notifications), 4:180 (Pandemic 


Preparedness), 5:30 (Hiring Process and Criteria), 8:30 (Visitors to and Conduct 


on School Property), 8:100 (Relations with Other Organizations and Agencies)


  








 


6:50 Page 1 of 2 


 Adopted 11/19/07 


Revised 04-20-15 


Formatted: Right


Kenilworth School District No. 38 6:50 


 


Instruction 


School Wellness  


Student wellness, including good nutrition and physical activity, shall be promoted in the District’s 


educational program, school activities, and meal programs. This policy shall be interpreted 


consistently with Section 204 of the Child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act of 2004.  


Goals for Nutrition Education  


The goals for addressing nutrition education include the following: 


 Schools will support and promote good nutrition for students. 


 Schools will foster the positive relationship between good nutrition, physical activity, and the 


capacity of students to develop and learn. 


 Nutrition education will be part of the District’s comprehensive health education curriculum. 


See School Board policy 6:60, Curriculum Content.  


Goals for Physical Activity  


The goals for addressing physical activity include the following: 


 Schools will support and promote an active lifestyle for students. 


 Physical education will be taught in all grades and shall include a developmentally planned 


and sequential curriculum that fosters the development of movement skills, enhances health-


related fitness, increases students’ knowledge, offers direct opportunities to learn how to 


work cooperatively in a group setting, and encourages healthy habits and attitudes for a 


healthy lifestyle. See Board policy 6:60, Curriculum Content.   


 Unless otherwise exempted, all students will be required to engage daily during the school 


day in a physical education course. See Board policy 6:60, Curriculum Content.   


 The curriculum will be consistent with and incorporate relevant Illinois Learning Standards 


for Physical Development and Health as established by the Illinois State Board of Education.  


Nutrition Guidelines for Foods Available in School During the School Day  


Students will be offered and schools will promote nutritious food and beverage choices consistent 


with the current Dietary Guidelines for Americans and Food Guidance System published jointly by 


the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and the Department of Agriculture. In addition, 


In in order to promote student health and reduce childhood obesity, the Superintendent or designee 


shall control food sales that compete with the District’s non-profit food service in compliance with 


the Child Nutrition Act. Food service rules shall restrict the sale of foods of minimal nutritional value, 


as defined by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, in the food service areas during the meal periods 


and comply with all applicable rules of the Illinois State Board of Education.  


shall establish administrative procedures to promote nutritious food and beverage choices and to 


control food sales.  


 


Monitoring  


The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic implementation data and/or reports to the 


Board concerning this policy’s implementation sufficient to allow the Board to monitor and adjust the 


policy. This report must include without limitation each of the following: 


 An assessment of the District’s implementation of the policy 


 The extent to which schools in the District are in compliance with the policy  


 The extent to which the policy compares to model local school wellness policies 


Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.29" + Indent at:  0.54"


Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.29" + Indent at:  0.54"







 


6:50 Page 2 of 2 


 Adopted 11/19/07 


Revised 04-20-15 


Formatted: Right


 A description of the progress made in attaining the goals of the policy 


 


Community Input  


The Superintendent or designee will invite suggestions and comments concerning the development, 


implementation, and improvement of the school wellness policy from community members, including 


parents, students, representatives of the school food authority, teachers of physical education, the 


school nurse, the Board of Education, school administrators, and the public. 


LEGAL REF.: Child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act of 2004, PL 108-265, Sec. 204. 


Child Nutrition Act of 1966, 42 U.S.C. §1771 et seq. 


National School Lunch Act, 42 U.S.C. §1758. 


Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010, 42 U.S.C. §1758b, PL 111-296. 


42 U.S.C. §1779, as implemented by 7 C.F.R. §210.11. 


105 ILCS 5/2-3.139. 


23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 305, Food Program. 


ISBE’s “School Wellness Policy” Goal, adopted Oct. 2007. 


 


CROSS REF.: 4:120 (Food Services) 


 6:60 (Curriculum Content) 


 


 


Formatted: Space Before:  0 pt, Don't add
space between paragraphs of the same style








Amended by the Board of Education April 20, 2015 


Kenilworth School District No. 38 
2014-2015 School Year Calendar  


 
AUGUST  25  No School - Teachers’ Institute 


26       Teachers’ Institute - Meet and Greet 8:30 a.m.-10:30 a.m. 
27 First Day of Student Attendance (Half Day – 12:05 p.m. Dismissal) 


 
     SEPTEMBER  1 No School – Labor Day Holiday 
 2 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) 
 3 First Day of Junior Kindergarten (9:30 a.m.-12:00 p.m.) 
 25 No School – Local School Holiday 
  


OCTOBER  10  No School – Teachers’ Institute  
 13 No School – Columbus Day Holiday 
 14 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) 
 23  Early Dismissal 12:05 p.m. Parent/Teacher Conferences (2:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.) 


                                    24     No School – Parent/Teacher Conferences (10:00 a.m.-5:00 p.m.) 
 
NOVEMBER 14  End of 1st Trimester  
 26-28 No School – Thanksgiving Break  


 
DECEMBER 1 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) 
 22-31  No School – Winter Break  


 
JANUARY 1-2 No School – Winter Break 
 5 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) - School Resumes 
 19 No School – Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Holiday  
 20  Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) 


  
FEBRUARY  6 Parent Visitation Day (Junior Kindergarten – 8th Grades)  
 12 No School – Parent/Teacher Conferences (8:30 a.m.-3:15 p.m.)  
 13 No School – Teachers’ Institute  
 16 No School – Presidents’ Day Holiday  
 17 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) 
 27 End of 2nd Trimester 


 
MARCH 30-31  No School – Spring Break 


 
APRIL 1-6 No School – Spring Break 
 7 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) - School Resumes 
    
MAY 25 No School – Memorial Day Holiday 
 26 Late Arrival for Students (9:20 a.m.) 
  
JUNE  4 Eighth Grade Graduation (5:00 p.m.) 
 8 Last Day of School (Half Day – 12:05 p.m. Dismissal) 
  
  








 1 


DRAFT 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 
 


Kenilworth School District 38 and  
The Joseph Sears School Annual Parent Survey 2015 


 
Dear Sears School Families: 
 
At the completion of the school year, the Board of Education is interested in seeking your 
input regarding your child’s (children’s) Sears School experience.  We thank each of you for 
your continued support of the Joseph Sears School, as you are a critical part of our success 
from many different perspectives. 
 
The survey information guides the Board of Education and Administration in the planning and 
decision-making process.  As part of our annual review and continuous improvement model, 
we examine areas of opportunity where we can improve our offerings to students, parents, 
faculty and staff.  We have also included a series of questions that will help evaluate the 
progress we are making in our Strategic Plan.   
 
Please note that this survey includes general questions that relate to your overall experience 
at Sears along with child/grade specific questions.  In order to collect valuable feedback that 
we can act on, we feel it is important to capture data that is specific to three categories: 
primary, intermediate and junior high grades.  Please complete the specific information for 
each child even if you have more than one child in a particular category (primary, 
intermediate, junior high).  Also, if you have a grade-specific comment to share, please 
indicate the grade level. Your responses are completely anonymous. 
 


General Questions 


 
Culture: 


 
1. Improving the culture within The Joseph Sears School has been a key component of 


our Strategic Plan.  The following questions focus on the students.  Please rate your 
agreement with each statement. 
 
My child(ren) understands and practices the four Cornerstone Behaviors (Honesty, 
Kindness, Respect, Responsibility). 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know  
 


Comments: 
 


My child(ren) practices age appropriate self-assessment, goal-setting and self-advocacy. 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   







 2 


____ No Opinion/Don’t Know  
 


Comments: 
 


My child(ren) understands the definition of bullying and procedures for how to handle it. 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments:  
 


The playground and lunch rules are fair and appropriate. 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know  


 
Comments: 
 
(Junior High Only) Discipline is delivered in a fair and consistent manner for Junior High 
students. 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know  


 
Comments: 
 


2. The Board of Education envisions a culture whereby there is transparency in 
decision-making after careful consideration of alternatives.  Please indicate your 
satisfaction with the transparency of deliberations and decision-making. 


 
____  Excellent    ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 
 


3. The following questions continue to focus on the culture at Sears with an emphasis 
on parents and community members.  Please rate your agreement with the 
following statements.  


 
The Board of Education communicates in an open, honest, respectful and timely manner 
with the community. 


 
____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know  
 


Comments: 
 







 3 


The Administration communicates in an open, honest, respectful and timely manner with 
the community. 


 
____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know  
 


Comments: 
 


I understand and practice the appropriate way to communicate with Faculty and 
Administration. 


 
____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments:  
 


I believe that I communicate with all stakeholders in the Sears’ community in a fair and 
respectful manner. 


 
____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know  


 
Comments: 
 


 
Communication 


  
1. The Sears to Home and our website are two of the School District’s ways to 


communicate with parents, students, faculty and staff.  Please rate your satisfaction 
with these methods of communication.   


 
Sears to Home 


       
____  Excellent    ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


  
      Comments: 
 
       Usefulness of Information on the Website 
 


____  Excellent    ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
Ease of Navigation of Website 


 







 4 


____  Excellent    ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/ Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 


2. Please indicate how often you use each of the following Board of Education 
communications and provide comments as to their effectiveness: 


 
Board Meeting Agendas 


 
____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 
 
Board Meeting Minutes 


 
 ____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
Monthly Board Briefs 


 
 ____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
Board Meeting Videotape 


 
 ____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
Board Meeting Live Streaming 


 
 ____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
Board Annual Report 


 
____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
listen@kenilworth38.org 


 
 ____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 







 5 


Comments: 
 
Community Forums 


 
____ Often ____ Seldom ____ Never ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 
 
 


Finances, Facilities, Student Services and Overall Rating: 
 
1. For the 12th year in a row, the State Board of Education has awarded Kenilworth 


School District with the highest financial rating.  Do you think that the District been 
fiscally responsible this past school year? 


 
____ Yes ____ No  ____Unsure 


 
Comments: 


 
2. Are there any facility or grounds related needs that should be a priority?  


 
____ Yes ____ No  ____Unsure 


 
Comments: 
 


3. Our Student Services Department consists of our Special Education Teachers, 
Literacy Specialists, Math Coach, School Social Workers, School Psychologist, 
Speech/Language Pathologist and School Nurse.  Please rate the effectiveness of 
their services? 


 
____  Excellent ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
____ Other Position not Listed 


 
Comments: 
 


4. How would you rate The Joseph Sears School overall? 
 


____  Excellent ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
5. What do you think is especially good about Sears School? 


 
Comments:  


 







 6 


6. What would you like to see changed or improved? 
 


Comments: 
  







 7 


Category (Grade Level) Specific Questions 


 
Now you will be asked to complete a series of questions related to a particular category 
(primary, intermediate, junior high).  Please complete this section for each child even if you 
have more than one child in a particular category. After you answer the question for one child, 
you will be prompted to return to answer additional questions for your other child(ren), if 
any. 
 
1. Do you have a child who is enrolled during the 2014-2015 school year in a Primary 


(JK-2) grade?  
 
Do you have a child who is enrolled during the 2014-2015 school year in an 
Intermediate (3-5) grade? 
 
Do you have a child who is enrolled during the 2014-2015 school year in Junior High 
(6-8)? 


 


Primary (JK-2) 


 
1. Overall, how do you rate your child’s school year? 


 
____  Excellent  ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor  
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
2. Overall was your child sufficiently challenged academically during this past school 


year? 
 


____ Yes ____ No        ____ Not Sure 
 
Comments: 


 
3. Are you satisfied with the integration of technology in your child’s classroom and 


assignments? 
 


____ Yes ____ No        ____ Not Sure 
 
Comments: 


 
4. Does the quality of your child’s homework emphasize real learning and 


reinforcement? 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
       ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 







 8 


 
Comments: 


 
5. Has your child’s teacher effectively communicated with you this year? 
 


____  Excellent  ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor  
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 


 
6. During Parent/Teacher Conferences please rate the discussion of the following 


topics for your child regarding: 
 


Adequate Not Enough Info Not Discussed 
Academic progress         ____  ____   ____  
Social/Emotional         ____  ____   ____  
Standardized Tests         ____  ____   ____ 
(MAP, AIMSWEB)  
Enrichment Opportunities        ____  ____   ____ 


 
Comments:  


 
7. The following areas were identified as action items in the Strategic Plan. Please note 


your general satisfaction with regards to: 
 
Excellent    Good    Fair    Poor    No Opinion/ 


       Don’t Know 
Response to Intervention  
(RtI)/Enrichment            ____            ____      ____      ____       ____  
Gifted Identification        ____            ____      ____      ____       ____ 
English and Language Arts  
(ELA)                                                 ____     ____      ____      ____       ____  
In School/ Extracurricular       
Opportunities         ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Mathematics              ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Physical Education        ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Social Science              ____            ____      ____      ____       ____  
Science         ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
World Language        ____            ____      ____      ____       ____ 
Social and Emotional 
Learning (SEL)                               ____     ____      ____      ____       ____ 


 
8. This year the Board of Education implemented year 2 of its Strategic Plan. Are you 


satisfied with the progress that has been made in the four goal areas: Curriculum, 
Communication, Culture, and Finance/Facilities?  


____ Yes ____ No ____ Unsure 



http://www.kenilworth38.org/cms/lib02/IL01001203/Centricity/Domain/199/KSD%20Strategic%20Plan%20No%20%202%20Final%20for%20Digital.pdf





 9 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


9. (Primary and Intermediate Only) Math in Focus and Everyday Count Calendar Math 
is the foundation of our math curriculum which is implemented for grades K-5.  
Please rate your satisfaction with these curricular materials. 


 
____  Excellent  ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor  
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 
 


10. Do you have another child in the Primary (JK-2) age group? 
 
 ____  Yes ____ No 
 
*Skip logic is applied here to bring participant through (JK-2) Questions again based on response 
or takes them to next question.  
 
1. Do you have an additional student who is enrolled during the 2014-2015 school 


year in one of the following categories, that you have not yet completed a series of 
questions for? 
 


____Intermediate (3-5) 
____Junior High (6-8) 
____No 


  







 10 


Intermediate (3-5) 
 


1. Overall, how do you rate your child’s school year? 
 
____  Excellent  ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor  
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
2. Overall was your child sufficiently challenged academically during this past school 


year? 
 


____ Yes ____ No        ____ Not Sure 
 
Comments: 


 
3. Are you satisfied with the integration of technology in your child’s classroom and 


assignments? 
 


____ Yes ____ No        ____ Not Sure 
 
Comments: 


 
4. Does the quality of your child’s homework emphasize real learning and 


reinforcement? 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
       ____ No opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 


 
5.   Has your child’s teacher effectively communicated with you this year? 
 


____  Excellent ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
6. During Parent/Teacher Conferences please rate the discussion of the following 


topics for your child regarding 
 


Adequate Not Enough Info Not Discussed 
Academic progress         ____  ____   ____  
Social/Emotional         ____  ____   ____  
Standardized Tests         ____  ____   ____ 
(MAP, AIMSWEB)  







 11 


Enrichment Opportunities        ____  ____   ____ 
 


Comments:  
 
7. The following areas were identified as action items in the Strategic Plan. Please note 


your general satisfaction with regards to: 
 


Excellent    Good    Fair    Poor    No Opinion/ 
       Don’t Know 


Response to Intervention  
(RtI)/Enrichment            ____            ____      ____      ____       ____  
Gifted Identification        ____            ____      ____      ____       ____ 
English and Language Arts  
(ELA)                                                 ____     ____      ____      ____       ____  
In School/ Extracurricular       
Opportunities         ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Mathematics              ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Physical Education        ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Social Science              ____            ____      ____      ____       ____  
Science         ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
World Language        ____            ____      ____      ____       ____ 
Social and Emotional 
Learning (SEL)                               ____     ____      ____      ____       ____ 
   


 
8. This year the Board of Education implemented year 2 of its Strategic Plan. Are you 


satisfied with the progress that has been made in the four goal areas: Curriculum, 
Communication, Culture, and Finance/Facilities?  


____ Yes ____ No ____ Unsure 
 


Comments:              


 


              


  
9. (Primary and Intermediate Only) Math in Focus and Everyday Count Calendar Math 


is the foundation of our math curriculum which is implemented for grades K-5.  
Please rate your satisfaction with these curricular materials. 


 
____  Excellent ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 
 


10. Do you have another child in the Intermediate (3-5) age group? 
 
 ____  Yes ____ No 
 



http://www.kenilworth38.org/cms/lib02/IL01001203/Centricity/Domain/199/KSD%20Strategic%20Plan%20No%20%202%20Final%20for%20Digital.pdf





 12 


*Skip logic is applied here to bring participant through (3-5) Questions again based on response 
or takes them to next question.  
 
1. Do you have an additional student who is enrolled during the 2014-2015 school 


year in one of the following categories, that you have not yet completed a series of 
questions for? 


____Primary (JK-2) 
____Junior High (6-8) 
____No 







 13 


Junior High (6-8) 


 
 


1. Overall, how do you rate your child’s school year? 
 
____  Excellent  ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor  
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 
2. Overall was your child sufficiently challenged academically during this past school 


year? 
 


____ Yes ____ No        ____ Not Sure 
 
Comments: 


 
3. Are you satisfied with the integration of technology in your child’s classroom and 


assignments? 
 


____ Yes ____ No        ____ Not Sure 
 
Comments: 


 
4. Our Homework Policy has a recommended amount of time for students to spend 


studying at home for each grade level. (Please Click Here to review the Homework 
Policy.)   
 
Is your child’s quantity of homework in line with these guidelines? 


 
____ Yes ____ No       ____ No Opinion 


 
Comments: 


 
5. Does the quality of your child’s homework emphasize real learning and 


reinforcement? 
 


____ Strongly Agree ____ Agree    ____ Neutral     ____ Disagree    ____ Strongly Disagree   
       ____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
Comments: 


 
6. Has your child’s teacher effectively communicated with you this year? 
 


____  Excellent  ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor  



http://www.kenilworth38.org/Page/1622





 14 


____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 
 


Comments: 
 


7. During Parent/Teacher Conferences please rate the discussion of the following 
topics for your child regarding 


 
Adequate Not Enough Info Not Discussed 


Academic progress         ____  ____   ____  
Social/Emotional         ____  ____   ____  
Standardized Tests         ____  ____   ____ 
(MAP, AIMSWEB)  
Enrichment Opportunities        ____  ____   ____ 


 
Comments:  


 
8. The following areas were identified as action items in the Strategic Plan. Please 


note your general satisfaction with regards to: 
 


Excellent    Good    Fair    Poor    No Opinion/ 
       Don’t Know 


Response to Intervention  
(RtI)/Enrichment            ____            ____      ____      ____       ____  
Gifted Identification        ____            ____      ____      ____       ____ 
English and Language Arts  
(ELA)                                                 ____     ____      ____      ____       ____  
In School/ Extracurricular       
Opportunities         ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Mathematics              ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Physical Education        ____            ____      ____      ____            ____ 
Social Science              ____            ____      ____      ____       ____  
World Language        ____            ____      ____      ____       ____ 
Social and Emotional 
Learning (SEL)                               ____     ____      ____      ____       ____ 
 


9. This year the Board of Education implemented year 2 of its Strategic Plan. Are you 
satisfied with the progress that has been made in the four goal areas: Curriculum, 
Communication, Culture, and Finance/Facilities?  


____ Yes ____ No ____ Unsure 
 


       Comments:             
  



http://www.kenilworth38.org/cms/lib02/IL01001203/Centricity/Domain/199/KSD%20Strategic%20Plan%20No%20%202%20Final%20for%20Digital.pdf





 15 


 
10. (Junior High Only) During this past school year, the Junior High has been 


continuing (year 2) to pilot a science program called IQWST or Investigating and 
Questioning Our World through Science.  Please rate your satisfaction with the pilot 
program. 


 
____  Excellent  ____ Good ____ Fair ____ Poor  
____ No Opinion/Don’t Know 


 
 Comments: 


 
 11. Do you have another child in the Junior High (6-8) age group? 
 
 ____  Yes ____ No 
 
 
*Skip logic is applied here to bring participant through (6-8) questions again based on response 
or takes them to next question.  
 
1. Do you have an additional student who is enrolled during the 2014-2015 school 


year in one of the following categories, that you have not yet completed a series of 
questions for:  


 
____ Primary (JK-2) 
____ Intermediate (3-5)  
____ Junior High (6-8) 
____ No 
 


(*Skip Logic built into the survey will direct participant to correct set of questions. If yes, 
participant will be returned to the appropriate starting question. If participant answers no, 
the survey is completed and they are directed to the Thank you page.)  
 
Thank you for your participation.  Your opinion matters to us and we are grateful you took 
the time to complete the survey. 


 
 








  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 1 


Dear Faculty or Staff Member: 


 


The Kenilworth District No. 38 Board of Education would like to have your input regarding The Joseph 


Sears School.  Your candid responses are invaluable to the Board. This survey includes questions 


regarding an evaluation of our School, as well as your opinions about potential programs and goals.  


Summary results of this survey will be shared with the entire Sears School community and will be used in 


conjunction with the Annual Parent Survey as we plan for the 2015-2016 school year and beyond.  Your 


responses are completely confidential. The methodology we are using ensures that individual responses 


remain anonymous. If you prefer not to complete a survey on-line, please complete a paper version. We 


want your feedback. Thank you.  


 


1. In general, do you feel Sears students are sufficiently challenged? ____ Yes  ____ No 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


2. Is there any feedback you have regarding specific strengths or areas of concern with the curriculum?  


  ____ Yes  ____ No 


 


If yes, please be specific. 


Comments:              


 


              


 


 


3. Were the professional development experiences offered this school year meaningful and impactful to 


your role? 


____ Yes ____ No ____ Not applicable 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


 


4. When considering your specific curricular areas for which you are responsible, do you have the 


administrative and pedagogical support to differentiate the curriculum to challenge the learners who 


have mastered the core curriculum? 


____ Yes ____ No ____ Not applicable 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 2 


5. Please indicate how satisfied you are with the following existing special programs.  


 


  Very 


Satisfied 


   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure or 


No 


Answer 


  5 4 3 2 1  


a. After-school, or Lunch 


time programs (e.g. Art 


Club, Chess Club, Great 


Books, Science Olympiad) 


  
    


        


c. English as a Second 


Language (ELL)   
    


 


d. 


 


Response to Intervention 


(Enrichment)  


  
    


        


e. Individual Gifted Plans 
  


    


        


f. Interscholastic Athletics  


(5-8)   
    


        


g. Library Services 
  


    


        


h. Technology Services 


(Educational support)   
    


        


i. Technology Access 


(Available Hardware and 


Software) 


  
    


        


j. Student Services (Grade 


Level Support)   
    


        


k. Student Services (Nursing, 


Psychological, Social 


Work, Speech and 


Language Support) 


  
    


        


 


If you are less than satisfied, please indicate why. 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 3 


6. Are there any services or programs that should be added? 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


              


 


Please indicate your satisfaction with the following aspects of The Joseph Sears School.  If you are 


less than satisfied please indicate why and what improvement(s) you would like to see implemented. 


 


  Very 


Satisfied 


   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure or 


No 


Answer 


  5 4 3 2 1  
7. Adequate facilities and 


space for learning 


 


 
 


       


 


 


 Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
8. 


 


 


Building and campus 


cleanliness   
    


        Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
9. Communications within 


your grade level,  


department, or work group 


  
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 
        
10. Communications within the 


school including 


newsletters and emails 


  
    


         


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
11. Communications with 


parents   
    


         


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


 


        
12. September Curriculum 


Nights 


 


  
    


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 4 


 
  Very 


Satisfied 


   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure 


or No 


Answer 


  5 4 3 2 1  
13. Structure of Parent/Teacher 


Conferences   
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
14. Level of participation by 


parents in Parent/Teacher 


Conferences 


  
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
15. School building security 


  
    


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
16. Student discipline policies 


  
    


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
17. Timely response by 


administrators to concerns   
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
18. New format of Parent 


Visitation Day   
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
19. Ease of navigation of 


District, School and Board 


of Education Website 


  
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
20. Curriculum Renewal 


Process   
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


        
21. Master/Bell Schedule 


Renewal Process   
    


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 5 


22. This year the Board of Education implemented year 2 of its Strategic Plan. Are you satisfied with the 


progress that has been made in the four goal areas: Curriculum, Communication, Culture, and 


Finance/Facilities?  


____ Yes ____ No ____ Unsure 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


The Board of Education envisions a culture whereby all parties (community, Board, faculty, staff, 


administration, students, and parents) treat each other with respect.  Please indicate your satisfaction 


with how you are treated by these entities: (Very satisfied through very dissatisfied).  Please use the 


comment section to indicate whether you feel there has been any change in school culture this year. 


 


  Very 


Satisfied 
   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure 


or No 


Answer 
  5 4 3 2 1  
23. Community 


 


 
 


       


 


 Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


 


  


 
24. 
 


 


Board of Education 


 
 


       


 


        Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


 


  
25. Faculty 


 


 
 


       


 


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


 


  


 
26. 
 


 


Staff (non-certified 


personnel) 


  
    


Comments:_________________________________________________________ 


 


        


 
27. 
 


 


Administration   
    


 Comments: __________________________________________________________ 


        


 
28. 
 


 


Students   
    


      Comments: __________________________________________________________ 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 6 


 
  Very 


Satisfied 
   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure 


or No 


Answer 
  5 4 3 2 1  


 
29. 
 


 


Parents   
    


        Comments: __________________________________________________________ 


 


30. The Board of Education envisions a culture whereby there is transparency in decision-making after 


careful consideration of alternatives.  Please indicate your satisfaction with the transparency of 


deliberations and decision-making. 


 
Very 


Satisfied 


   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure 


or No 


Answer 


5 4 3 2 1  


         


 


 


 


If you are less than satisfied, what what one change would you recommend? 


              


 


              


 


31. Please indicate your satisfaction with the Administrative transparency of deliberations and decision-


making. 


 
Very 


Satisfied 


   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure 


or No 


Answer 


5 4 3 2 1  


         


 


 


 


If you are less than satisfied, what what one change would you recommend? 


              


 


              


 


32. With the high level of engagement of the Joseph Sears School Parents, to what extent are you 


satisfied with your interactions with parents? 
Very 


Satisfied 


   Very 


Dissatisfied 


Unsure 


or No 


Answer 


5 4 3 2 1  


         


 


 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 7 


 


 


If you are less than satisfied, what one change would improve your level of satisfaction? 


 


              


 


              


 


33. The Board of Education and Administration have identified a new administrative structure for the 


2015-2016 school year. What suggestions do you have to monitor the effectiveness of the structure? 


 


_________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


_________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


34. The Administration and Faculty have identified a new Master/Bell Schedule for the 2015-2016 school 


year. What suggestions do you have to monitor the effectiveness of the new Master/Bell Schedule? 


 


              


 


              


 


35. What do you consider to be particular strengths of The Joseph Sears School? 


 


              


 


              


 


36. What areas should the District focus on for improvement or what new programs, if any, would you 


like to see implemented? 


 


              


 


              


 


37. Are there any facility or grounds related needs that should be a priority for the 2015-2016 school 


year? 


____ Yes ____ No 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


Please indicate your agreement with the following. 


 


38. My supervisor provides regular, consistent, helpful review of my performance. 


 
Always Most of the 


Time 


Inconsistently Rarely or Not 


at All 


4 3 2 1 


 
 


 
 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 8 


 


39. Personnel policies and procedures are administered consistently across the District. 


 
Always Most of the 


Time 


Inconsistently Rarely or Not 


at All 


4 3 2 1 


 
 


 
 


 


40. Training and Professional Development is promoted for all employees. 


 
Always Most of the 


Time 


Inconsistently Rarely or Not 


at All 


4 3 2 1 


 
 


 
 


 


41. I am respected as a person and my opinion is valued. 


 
Always Most of the 


Time 


Inconsistently Rarely or Not 


at All 


4 3 2 1 


 
 


 
 


 


42. When working in a group or on a team, I am able to express my views without fear of retribution. 


 
Always Most of the 


Time 


Inconsistently Rarely or Not 


at All 


4 3 2 1 


 
 


 
 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


43. For any of these areas above, please describe how they could be improved. 


              


 


              


 


44. What single action could the Board of Education take to strengthen the academics at the Sears 


School? 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


 


 


 


 







  
Draft 3 – 2014-2015 School Year 


Kenilworth School District 38 and 


The Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff Annual Survey 2015 


Faculty/Staff Survey 2014-2015 Draft 9 


45. On a scale of one to five, with five meaning highly satisfied, please rate your overall satisfaction with 


The Joseph Sears School.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


Comments:_______________________________________________________________________ 


 


 ________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


 


46. Please share any additional suggestions you have for the Board of Education. 


 


Comments:              


 


              


 


              


 


              


 


 


 


Thank you for taking the time to respond to this survey.  


Highly 


Satisfied 


Satisfied Neutral Dissatisfied Highly 


Dissatisfied 


5 4 3 2 1 


 
 


   








  1 of 3 
  Adopted 12-8-08 


  Revisions Presented 4-20-15  


Kenilworth School District No. 38 4:30 


 


Operational Services 


Revenue and Investments 


Revenue 


The Superintendent/Chief School Business Official (CSBO) or designee is responsible for making all 


claims for property tax revenue, State Aid, special state funds for specific programs, federal funds, and 


categorical grants. 


Investments 


The CSBO shall invest money that is not required for current operations, in accordance with this policy 


and State law.  The CSBO shall use the standard of prudence when making investment decisions. He/She 


shall use the judgment and care, under circumstances when prevailing, that persons of prudence, 


discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for 


investment, considering the safety of their capital as well as its probable income. 


The CSBO for the District, shall be responsible for establishing the internal controls and written 


procedures for the operation of the investment program.  In addition to that, the Board of Education shall 


designate a District Treasurer.  Any transactions proposed by the CSBO involving fund transfers or 


withdrawls will require approval from the District Treasurer.  In collaboration with the CSBO, the District 


Treasurer shall review all investment transactions.   


Investment Objectives 


The objectives for the School District’s investment activities are: 


1. Safety of Principal - Every investment is made with safety as the primary and over-riding concern.  


Each investment shall ensure that capital loss, whether from credit or market risk, is avoided. 


2. Liquidity - The investment portfolio shall provide sufficient liquidity to pay District obligations as 


they become due.  In this regard, the maturity and marketability of investments shall be considered. 


3. Rate of Return - The optimal return on investments is sought, consistent with the preservation of 


principal and prudent investment principles. 


4. Diversification - The investment portfolio is diversified as to financial instruments and investments, 


as appropriate to the nature, purpose, and amount of funds. 


Authorized Investments 


The Board of Education will annually review the District’s investment objectives and strategies. The 


CSBO may invest any District funds: 


1. In bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities now or hereinafter 


issued, which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America as to 


principal and interest. 


2. In bonds, notes, debentures, or other similar obligations of the United States of America or its 


agencies, and its instrumentalities. 


The term “agencies of the United States of America” includes: (i) the federal land banks, federal 


intermediate credit banks, banks for cooperative, federal farm credit banks, or any other entity 


authorized to issue debt obligations under the Farm Credit Act of 1971 and Acts amendatory 







  2 of 3 
  Adopted 12-8-08 


  Revisions Presented 4-20-15  


thereto; (ii) the federal home loan banks and the federal home loan mortgage corporation; and 


(iii) any other agency created by Act of Congress. 


3. In interest-bearing savings accounts, interest-bearing certificates of deposit or interest-bearing time 


deposits or any other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the 


Illinois Banking Act.  Such investments shall be at or below the Federal Deposit Insurance 


Corporation (FDIC). 


4. In short term obligations of corporations organized in the United States with assets exceeding 


$500,000,000 if (i) such obligations are rated at the time of purchase at one of the 3 highest 


classifications established by at least 2 standard rating services and which mature not later than 270 


days from the date of purchase, (ii) such purchases do not exceed 10% of the corporation’s 


outstanding obligations and (iii) no more than one-third of the public agency’s funds may be 


invested in short term obligations of corporations. 


5. In money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, provided that 


the portfolio of any such money market mutual fund is limited to obligations described in paragraph 


(1) and (2) of this subsection and to agreements to repurchase such obligations. 


6. In a Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool created under Section 17 of the State Treasurer Act.  Any 


public agency may also invest any public funds in a fund managed, operated, and administered by a 


bank, subsidiary of a bank, or subsidiary of a bank holding company or use the services of such an 


entity to hold and invest or advise regarding the investment of public funds. 


7. In the Illinois School District Liquid Asset Fund Plus. 


8. In any investment as authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act, and Acts amendatory thereto. 


Paragraph 11 supercedes paragraphs 1-10 and controls in the event of conflict. 


Investments may be made only in banks which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, 


unless the District enters into an agreement with the institution requiring any funds not insured to be 


collateralized as provided below. Such investments shall be at or below the Federal Deposit Insurance 


Corporation (FDIC). 


Selection of Depositories, Investment Managers, Dealers, and Brokers 


The CSBO shall establish a list of authorized depositories, investment managers, dealers and brokers 


based upon the creditworthiness, reputation, minimum capital requirements, qualifications under State 


law, as well as a long history of dealing with public fund entities. 


In order to be an authorized depository, each institution must submit copies of the last 2 sworn statements 


of resources and liabilities or reports of examination, which the institution is required to furnish to the 


appropriate state or federal agency.  Each institution designated as a depository shall, while acting as such 


depository, furnish the District with a copy of all statements of resources and liabilities or all reports of 


examination, which it is required to furnish to the appropriate state or federal agency. 


All banks used as depositories for School District funds shall be approved by the Board of Education, and 


shall meet the criteria of the Public Funds Deposit Act.  Persons authorized to sign checks shall be 


approved by the Board of Education.  At least one of the signers shall be the District Treasurer except for 


individual School Activity Fund Accounts. 


Safekeeping and Custody Arrangements 


The preferred method for safekeeping is to have securities registered in the District’s name and held by a 


third-party custodian.  Safekeeping practices should qualify for the General Accounting Standards 


Board’s Statement III, Category I, the highest recognized safekeeping procedures. 


Controls Report 







  3 of 3 
  Adopted 12-8-08 


  Revisions Presented 4-20-15  


The CSBO shall establish a system of internal controls and written operational procedures to prevent 


losses arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent employee 


action. 


The CSBO shall provide an investment report to the Board at each Regular Board meeting.  The report 


will:  (1) assess whether the investment portfolio is meeting the District’s investment objectives, 


(2) identify each security by class or type, book value, income earned, and market value, (3) identify 


those institutions providing investment services to the District, (4) include an Investment Certification 


Statement and (5) include any other relevant information.  The investment portfolio’s performance shall 


be measured by appropriate and creditable industry standards for the investment type. 


The School Board shall determine, after receiving the Superintendent/CSBO’s recommendation, which 


fund is in most need of interest income and what unrestricted interest is available for transfer, and, by 


resolution enacted before June 30 of each year, direct the Superintendent/CSBO to execute any transfers 


of any unrestricted interest accordingly. 


Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 


The School Board and District officials will avoid any investment transactions or practice that in 


appearance or fact might impair public confidence.  Board Members are bound by the Board Member 


Conflict of Interest Policy 2:100.  No District employee having influence on the District’s investment 


decisions shall: 


1. have any interest, directly or indirectly, in any investments in which the District is authorized to 


invest; 


2. have any interest, directly or indirectly, in the sellers, sponsors, or managers of those investments; 


3. receive in any manner, compensation of any kind from any investments in which the agency is 


authorized to invest. 


With the adoption of this policy, the Board acknowledges that the District will be temporarily out of 


compliance.  The District will be in full compliance with this policy by the end of the 2015 calendar year.  


 


LEGAL REF.:  30 ILCS 235/1 et seq. 


   105 ILCS 5/8-7, 5/17-1, and 5/17-11. 


CROSS REF.: 2:100 (Board Member Conflict of Interest), 4:10 (Fiscal and Business 


Management) 


 


 


 


 


 








 


7:280 Page 1 of 1 


 Presented 04-20-15  


Kenilworth School District No. 38 7:280 


 


Students 


Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease  


A student with or carrying a communicable and/or chronic infectious disease has all rights, privileges, 


and services provided by law and the School Board’s policies. The Superintendent will develop 


procedures to safeguard these rights while managing health and safety concerns. 


LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-21.11. 


410 ILCS 315/2a. 


23 Ill.Admin.Code §§ 1.610 and 226.300. 


77 Ill.Admin.Code Part 690. 


Individuals With Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq. 


Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, 29 U.S.C. §794(a). 


 








DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       


MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     


542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


 


 


 


 


 


 
        


To:  Kenilworth 38 Board of Education and Dr. Kelley Kalinich 


From: Kendra N. Wallace 


RE: Principal Update 


Date: April 20, 2015 


 


1. General Strategic Plan Updates 


 


A. IQWST (Investigating and Questioning our World through Science and 


Technology): We are into year two of using the science program in our 


classrooms. The pilot will be audited this spring/summer.  A number of areas 


identified as needing strengthening and additional materials will be addressed.  


Additionally, we will look to identify a textbook or text that supports specific 


units. 


 


B. Elementary Science: Four out of six grade levels have completed a pilot unit. 


Teachers complete an evaluation at the end and are able to debrief on strength and 


weaknesses.  Mixed feedback and definite areas of identified strength and others 


for supplement have been identified to day. We will review other publishers and 


similar units.  Each grade level received professional development and targeted 


planning opportunities prior to starting the their unit.   


 


C. Extracurricular Science Opportunities: Opportunities for students to pursue 


science minutes outside of classroom have grown.  With the addition of Lego 


League and the expansion of Science Olympiad, we increased the number of 


minutes and students involved in the field outside of direct instruction.  The shift in 


the master schedule will also provide these opportunities. 


 


D. Use of Space: A facilities audit of classrooms is underway and needs have been 


identified in the current 6
th


 grade science classroom. A faculty and staff break 


room was designated on the 2
nd


 floor, and we are looking at other larger spaces for 


next year. 


 


E. Junior High English Language Arts: Revision of curriculum and materials to 


align with CCSS and revised minutes. PARCC Performance Based Assessment 


was fully implemented in March and preparations for May End of Year test are 


underway. Anchor performance assessment was pushed back one year as we 


rework the Curriculum Map and developing a common language. 


 


 


 


 


 







DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       


MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     


542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


F. World Language: World Language is making visits and will begin work to adjust 


curriculum. The goals of the Strategic Plan need to be revisited, as the beginning 


of the year request was to wait one more year.  The dialogue with New Trier and 


other schools in the area is open and continuing. Teacher have gone on school 


visits and attended professional growth regarding best practice in the field.  We 


plan to have teachers attend TPRS (Total Physical Response Storytelling) 


approach to teaching World Language. 


 


G. Math in Focus: Some grade levels are ahead of others in debriefing about the pros 


and cons of the program. Some grade levels have identified areas of need in the 


program, professional development needs and an opportunity to review the 


program in light of a scope and sequence. 


 


H. Junior High Math Curriculum: Junior High is working on scope and sequence 


and working to identify the elements of the math program here at Sears. Summer 


work will revolve around identifying our philosophy of mathematics, course 


offerings and identifying school wide scope and sequence and benchmark skills at 


each grade level.  We will continue to research and review materials to identify 


rigorous and aligned materials for all Junior High classes. 


 


I. State Testing: PARCC Performance Based Assessment was fully implemented in 


March and preparations for May End of Year test are underway. Rubric for math 


placement is under revision and additional the process.  Course offerings have 


been reviewed as is the philosophy statement.  Three teachers sit on the 


articulation committee with New Trier and the township.  This summer will be the 


more intense curriculum work.  A draft scope and sequence is in place and will be 


revisited and refined reviewing performance data and with reflection on what was 


covered. Areas of need will be identified and will be addressed through 


professional development or search for supplemental materials. 


 


J. Social Science: The work of Grades 6-8 curriculum sequence has started. The goal 


is to have a completed scope and sequence by the end of summer. We will begin 


the work of researching and identifying course materials this summer and continue 


throughout out the year. Materials are on order for review as well as a few digital 


platform resources. We are exploring the C3 Framework for College, Career and 


Community life that is under review to be adopted as part of The National 


Standards and integrated as Illinois State Standards. Additionally, we will begin 


the work on creating our SS curriculum next year with the goal of completions in 


the SY 2016-17. 


 


K. Master Schedule Update: The Master Schedule is almost complete. The 


adjustment has been approved.  The committee will meet to finalize details and 


work on some of the programmatic offerings on April 30.  Recommendations for 


JK-5 and 6-8 master schedules are being fine-tuned. 


 


L. Literacy: Reading and writing programs have been identified at the elementary 


school level as an area to audit and prioritize for curriculum. 


 



http://www.socialstudies.org/system/files/c3/C3-Framework-for-Social-Studies.pdf

http://www.socialstudies.org/system/files/c3/C3-Framework-for-Social-Studies.pdf





DR. KELLEY M. KALINICH, SUPERINTENDENT          DR. CRYSTAL S. LEROY, BUSINESS SERVICES AND HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER       


MRS. KENDRA N. WALLACE, PRINCIPAL          MS. JULIA R. JONES, DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES 


     


542 Abbotsford Road   Kenilworth, Illinois 60043   phone: 847.256.5006   fax: 847.256.4418   www.kenilworth38.org 


M. Curriculum Renewal: The Curriculum Renewal program is being revised to 


adjust to some of the needs and changes the new master schedule will require and 


align with the conclusion of piloted materials. Policies and procedures for students 


were clearly identified and have been implemented, monitored and revised. 


Additional policies and procedures needing updates and modifications have been 


identified for the summer. 


 


N. Discipline: We have not yet identified the correct discipline and behavior system 


to meet our needs and are using a Google doc and traditional paper system in the 


interim. 


 


O. Junior High Homework: We have addressed homework expectations in the 


Junior High and continue to monitor and remind educators. Additional, an 8
th


 


grade testing calendar was implemented to help spread out the work load and 


reduce stress for students. 


 


P. General Evaluation: Identifying key concepts and critical understanding is 


underway as we work to identify what it means to have a Joseph Sears School 


education. School traditions were examined and communication has gone home 


outlining expectations.  Where needed they have been adjusted or modified. 


Community and staff surveys were reviewed and goals have been set in response 


to information gathered. 


 


Q. Communication with Parents: Sears to Home has been refined and balancing 


what type of information is shared through which vehicle is continually being 


refined. 


 


2. Summer Professional Development 


A. Use data to create plan 


B. Reading/Writing and Assessment review/audit 


C. Identify key support and establish 2-3 year plan with benchmark/goals 


D. Begin work to create School Improvement Plans with teacher involvement to 


connect data, teaching and learning 


E. Address strategic plan and have teachers/departments/grade levels identify in 


summer/early fall and evolve into SIP plan 


F. Technology Days to train staff on new management/web page system 


 


 


 


 









